
COMBINED BOARD OF SELECTMAN AND BOARD OF FINANCE 
PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING 
MINUTES OF MEETING--DRAFT 
MARCH 6, 2012 
 
Pursuant to the call and written notice, the Public Budget Hearing of the Board of 
Selectman and the Board of Finance was held on Tuesday, March 6, 2012 at 7:00 pm in 
the Board of Education Administrative Offices, Seminar Room 300, 501 Kings Highway 
East, Fairfield, CT. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 Robert Bellitto, Jr., Ken Brachfeld,  Kevin Kiley, Mary LeClerc, Robert Stone, Elaine 
Gaffney, Christopher DeWitt , James Brown 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
Thomas Flynn 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Michael Tetreau, Cristin McCarthy-Vahey, Board of Selectmen, Town of Fairfield, Jim 
Walsh, Board of Selectmen (7:15 pm) 
Paul Hiller, Chief Fiscal Officer and Clerk of the Board of Finance 
Linda Gardiner, Budget Director, Town of Fairfield 
Chief Richard Felner, Fire - Town of Fairfield 
Deputy Chief Reid- Fire-Town of Fairfield 
Chief Gary MacNamara-Police-Town of Fairfield 
Deputy Chief Chris Lyddy-Police-Town of Fairfield 
Captain Donald Smith-Police-Town of Fairfield 
Captain Josh Zabin-Police-Town of Fairfield 
Paul Miller, Animal Control Officer-Town of Fairfield 
Sands Cleary, Director of Health-Town of Fairfield 
 
Vice-Chairman Bellitto called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm., and asked for a moment 
of silence for the passing of Chairman Thomas Flynn’s Father. 
 
FIRE 
Chief Felner and Deputy Chief Reid presented the Fire Department Budget overall to the 
Boards. 
 
Chief Felner stated the overall Fire Department budget this year is very lean with just a 
.4% increase which is due to longevity and step increase for THEA union members and 
senior staff overtime costs. Administration worked together this year to keep the increase 
very low. 
 
It was noted that rates for diesel fuel, oil prices and parts for fleet are uncontrollable due 
to variations. 
 
 
 



 
Capital requests are limited this year- asking for a new car replacement for a crown 
Victoria which has over 18,000 miles.  Used vehicles from the Police Department are 
being recycled to the Fire Department and are used as back-up vehicles for the current 
fleet. 
 
D.C. Reid stated that a new meter calibration dock is being requested as with the 
acquisition of this item,, testing will now be done in-house and save the town time and 
money  and will pay for itself in 2 years. 
 
Mr. Hiller informed the Boards that the RTM last Monday night had ratified a new Fire 
Union Contract-and new labor costs calculations are not included in this presentation, but 
will be forthcoming.  New contract calls for a 2 and 2 ¾% percent increase over two 
years. 
 
Mr. Dewitt questioned the overtime vacancy as the line item has held steady for the last 4 
years, and whether we should continue to carry the vacancy or would it is more beneficial 
to the town to hire additional personnel. 
The Chiefs stated that it is cheaper to carry a vacancy (no benefits costs, uniforms, 
training, clothing and gear). 
 
Mr. Dewitt also asked if there would be any additional liability with the new meter 
calibration dock-no it actually will save the town money and will greatly eliminate 
equipment down time. 
 
Selectman Jim Walsh arrives at 7:15pm 
 
Questioning continued on the vacancy line item with Mr. Kiley asking it posed a safety 
issue to either firemen being brought back on duty or to citizens. 
 
DC Reid explained that there is no safety issues for either- it is more effective to bring in 
someone who is off duty and well trained to fill a vacancy and that the current staffing 
level will be fine and there will be no safety issues unless the vacancy level approaches 8, 
and that the department is currently planning on 4 vacancies. 
 
Mr. Brown inquired about the recently ratified fire union contract. Mr. Hiller stated that 
the contract calls for a hard freeze in fiscal year 2010, a 2% increase in this current fiscal 
year and for a 2 3/4 % increase in the next fiscal year for a total of 4 ¾% increase. This 
will affect all payroll line items, including over time and be covered by the contingency 
account. 
 
Mr. Kiley asked for a full updated Fire Department Budget to see the impact on all the 
line items affected by the salary increases. 
 
 

Page 2 of  9 



Mr. Brachfeld asked if the department has contacted other towns to see if they handle the 
vacancies in similar fashion.  It was noted that the Chiefs have contacted other towns and 
that this is a similar practice in all surrounding communities. 
 
Ms. C.M-Vahey questioned capital items:  

Calibration dock- how often would it need to be replaced?  DC Reid replied 
typically last 5-10 years but depends on updated technology-current meters are 
lasting 7-8 years. 
Thermal Imaging Cameras-carry one in every truck –cost is up 25% this year due 
to new technology and changes in GPS technology and that we are currently on a 
1 every other year replacement cycle. 
Staff vehicle costs up $36,000 from $30,000-due to different vehicle (as crown 
vics are no longer being produced nor parts available) and cost of new equipment. 

 
Mr. Walsh questioned whether equipment and apparatus from old staff vehicles could be 
removed and used in the new vehicles to save dollars.  Chief Felner stated that old 
vehicles are used as “back ups” for vehicles out for repairs, and DC Reid stated that 
equipment will not fit on new model of vehicles anyways. 
 
DC Reid responded to Mr. Walsh’s question regarding the amount of fire hose 
replacement sought for this year (up 3,000 ft from annually 1,000-1,700) –stating that 
they are focusing on replacing more supply hose this year that is oldest and also includes 
some attack hose. 
 
Mr. Walsh questioned that there was no request for any new trucks in this budget and 
wants to know if all our major equipment is up to date, and if there is a schedule (written) 
for replacements of fire trucks. 
Chief Felner stated that the ladder/rescue truck should be the next to be considered for 
replacement. 
Discussion ensured on how the last budget request for a major truck replacement was 
handled-whether the amount was divided between 2 fiscal years-and whether bond 
counsel recommended against such a process.  Mr. Hiller will check how the last funding 
request was finally handled by the town and get back to the boards. 
 
Mr. Walsh asks for a written fire truck replacement program for the future. 
Mr. Walsh also questioned fuel prices, auto repair costs and the age of our current fleet 
and also questioned the 67% increase in the maintenance/repairs material line.  Chief 
Felner responded that this increase is due to old firehouses in need of repairs. 
Ms. M.-Vahey asked that this line item should be more specific in what this amount is 
being asked and used for, 
 
Mr. Stone asked if the department has gone after or received any grants for equipment.  
Chief Felner stated that they actively pursue grant funding and have recently received a 
$15,000 grant from GE, however smaller communities tend to receive more grant 
funding. 
Ms. M.-Vahey asked that the grants received and spent should be more transparent in 
future budgets. 

Page 3 of  9 



Ms. Gaffney asked how many stations does the town currently have, response time and 
how many personnel on each time shifts, and the # of fleet vehicles.   The Chiefs stated 
we currently have 5 stations serving the town with a 3-5 minute dispatch time; 68 
personnel on each time shift and our fleet consists of 26 vehicles including staff cars and 
reserves. 
 
Mr. DeWitt asked about the increase in the payroll line item, to which Mr. Hiller and 
Chief Felner responded that this is due to the ratified THEA contract and the increases 
associated with this contract. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Fire Commission Member Susan Barrett thanked the volunteers on the boards for their 
hard work and commended the Chief and his staff on the job done and asked the boards 
for their support in this lean budget presented. 
 
Fire Commission Chair Charlene Lebo asked for support of this very lean budget as it is a 
vital obligation for safety to the town. 
 
No other public comment-back to boards. 
Mr. Bellitto requested a Capital Replacement Plan for the Fire Department. 
 
HYDRANT AND WATER 
 
Chief Felner stated costs come from Aquarion Water Co. for the hydrants. 
 
No questions or comments from boards or public. 
 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
 
DC Reid stated that the communication budget used is partnered with the Fire 
Department’s cell phones. 
 
Mr. Bellitto questioned where the reimbursement shows up in the budget, to which DC 
Reid stated it appears under Other State Grants. 
 
Mr. Walsh questioned the increase in the payroll line and Mr. Hiller responded that this is 
solely due to the new THEA contract increases. 
 
Mr. Stone complimented all the work done by Police, Fire and all emergency services 
during our recent weather emergencies. 
 
No other comment board or public. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of  9 



ECC 
 
Chief Gary MacNamara, Deputy Chief Chris Lyddy, Captains Josh Zabin and Donald 
Smith presented budget to the Boards. 
 
Captain Zabin gave an overall description to the boards, stating that the center had 
received over 200, 00 in 2011 and that ECC played a crucial part in response during our 
recent weather emergencies. 
 
Mr. Walsh questioned the 32% increase in overtime replacement costs. 
Cpt. Zabin stated that last year the ECC had 4 vacancies and recently hired 3 however 
another vacancy recently occurred with the death of an employee.  New hires must 
complete training, which requires overtime necessary for trained personnel.  Capt. Smith 
stated that the interview/testing and training process is very lengthy. 
 
Mr. Brachfeld asked if they are going to carry a vacancy like the fire department to which 
Capt. Zabin responded no that they intend to fill all vacancies and would like to have a 
full staff of 14. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey questioned the Narrow Banding Project. DC Reid responded that 
technology advancements are required by the Federal government by the end of the year 
and the dollar difference is for that deferred from last year’s budget. 
 
POLICE 
Chief Gary MacNamara gave an overall budget presentation to the boards. 
Accompanying the Chief were Deputy Chief Chris Lyddy and Captains Josh Zabin and 
Donald Smith. 
 The Chief stated that the Police Department responded to over 41, 000 service calls in 
2011, and also contributed time to increasing traffic safety initiatives and education and 
increased Police presence in schools and community. We are doing this and maintaining 
a high level of service with a requested 0% increase; in fact the department’s budget is 
decreased by .06% 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey quickly questioned the number of crossing guards, which is not 
decreasing. 
Ms. M.-Vahey asked about the accuracy of predicting overtime earning.  Chief 
MacNamara answered that it is difficult to nail down this line item as the overtime 
earnings for higher ranking officers are greater than lower ranking patrol and hard to 
estimate where overtime will be needed by rank. Currently the department is showing 3 
vacancies and the Police department does not fund overtime to make up for vacancy as 
the fire department does. 
 
 
 

Page 5 of  9 
 



Mr. Walsh questioned the revenues projection (up 60%) – Chief MacNamara stated this 
is directly related to an increase in enforcement, focus on safety and distribution of 
resources to focus directly on increase of enforcement and that the department anticipates 
maintaining this higher level of enforcement.  Chief noted that we are currently above 
forecasting revenue projections in this current year budget by $43,000.00 
 
Deputy Chief Lyddy said that the new scanners recently purchased allows the department 
to scan an average of 7,000-8,000 license plates per week and that this program is very 
successful.  
 
Ms. M.-V. Asked why the parking violation fees were down 6.67%-Chief responded 
improved services from the Parking Authority and DC Lyddy said department has 
allocated more resources for parking/traffic issues. 
Chief MacNamara stated that the department is looking to modernize processing of 
tickets for a more efficient system in the future; nothing budgeted for this as yet. 
 
Mr. Walsh asked about the decrease in the dollar amount for the alarm ordinance-Chief 
stated that there were no changes in how this is enacted, but that more citizens are aware 
of this ordinance and thus are more in compliance. 
 
Mr. Walsh asked about the decline in the work attendance bonus line item-DC responded 
no changes however employees taking advantage of this is declining. 
 
Mr. Walsh also questioned the decline in the rental and storage line item to which the 
Chief said assed forfeit funding funds used to pay for fingerprinting and equipment. 
 
Mr. Walsh asked about the Capital requests-car replacement down form 12 cars normally 
each budget year to 10 in this request.  Chief responded that they are looking for 
alternative to crown vics (no longer manufactured) and thus cost per car-fully equipped 
would be more than previous years, therefore they cut number of vehicle requested to 
make up the dollar increases.  Equipment for old vehicles cannot be used/fitted into what 
ever new model is ultimately decided upon. 
 
Mr. Brown noted that other than payroll the largest dollar amount is for fuel and how can 
the department compare fuel mileage for specific vehicles they are considering.  The 
Chief stated that it is near impossible to predict mileage as to the use of Police cars- 
stops/go, pursuits etc and they rely on purchasing department to obtain the best price for 
gas.  Chief also stated that an average patrol car puts 45,000 miles on each year and the 
average duration for a patrol car is 5 years. 
 
Mr. Kiley asked if the department looks into alternative fuel cars, such as diesel for patrol 
cars.  Chief states that while they do look for alternate fueling method cars, none have 
been adequately recommended for Public Safety Departments as of yet-mainly due to the 
usage of :aw Enforcement issues (high pursuit travel etc). 
 
 
 

Page 6 of  9 



Ms. M.-Vahey noted the decrease in the postage line item. 
 
Discussion about last year’s request for IT person specifically for the Police Department-
as it was cut from last year’s budget it is not in this year’s budget.  Mr. Tetreau stated that 
there are on going discussions with Police, Fire and IT as to how to implement and where 
to go with this request. 
 
Mr. Walsh asked about the Fuel account-last year the BOF decreased the request how are 
we doing year to date.  85% is spent year to date and it looks like it will go over budget. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Michael Hurley-RTM District 1-member of PH&S for RTM and had toured the Police 
Department and no has a better understanding for the operations of the department and 
suggest the entire RTM, along with these Boards should also do the tour,  Encourages the 
boards to approve the proposed budget. 
 
Police Commission Chair Tom Dubrowsky-complimented the energy and 
professionalism of the entire Police Department and staff and praise the high moral of the 
department and respect for their hard work and encourages the boards to pass the budget 
as presented. 
 
 
ANIMAL CONTROL 
 
Paul Miller accompanied Chief Gary MacNamara in presenting this budget.   
 
Mr. Miller said the only line item in his control that is seeing an increase is auto 
maintenance –a $1,000 increase for parts and maintenance. 
 
Payroll increase directly due to new THEA contractual increases. 
 
Mr. Walsh asked if the facility was being utilized more these days.  Mr. Miller stated that 
more animals are being abandoned (due to tough economic times) and that there are more 
animals in worse shape in the facility. 
 
Chief MacNamara praised Mr. Miller and his staff for manning a very successful pet 
shelter during the recent hurricane.  Mr. Tetreau and the boards joined in on a job well 
done with the shelter. 
 
Recess called from 9:10 to 9:22 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 9 
 



HEALTH  
 
Sands Cleary, Director of Health, presented the overview of this budget. Payroll increase 
directly associated with THEA contractual increases. 
 
Mr. Tetreau complimented Mr. Cleary on a good job or re-balancing his department and 
on his creativity to prioritize how the dollars should be spent. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey questioned the communications line asking if cell phones were being 
purchased thru the purchasing department.   Mr. Cleary stated that they are not as of right 
now as they are still on contract and have very good rates. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey asked about the number of nurse and do all work 12 months.  Mr. Cleary 
stated that there are 33 nurses-3 works full time 12 months; 1 part time nurse works 12 
months and the rest are on 10 month work schedule. 
 
Mr. Walsh complimented Mr. Cleary on his budget and asked what the overtime earning 
were used for.  Mr. Cleary stated that overtime earnings are the results of staff being 
called out for fires, the hurricane, town events that require a health department staff, in 
addition to many more license facilities in town that require inspection and also the 
increase in calls related to hoarding, clutter and sanitary issues.  Some costs for shelter 
for the hurricane, however since it was on a weekend, no additional staffing costs were 
necessary. 
Mr. Cleary also noted that Farmer’s Markets are becoming more popular in town and 
since these events are mostly on weekend’s overtime is necessary for his staff to inspect, 
however he was able to decrease other line items so to accommodate the increase in 
overtime spending. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey stated the need for more transparency in the obtaining of grant dollars and 
how they are spent. 
 
HUMAN & SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
Chair of the Human & Social Services Commission Selma Cohen presented the over 
view of this budget to the boards, accompanied by commission members Marc Andre, 
Kevin Lennon and Nancy Legare.  Mr. Cohen stated the most increase is seen in the 
maintenance and repairs line item as there are numerous issues that need to be addressed 
with the current building. 
 
Mr. Tetreau noted to the board that this department’s budget is being re-balanced this 
year to allow for additional line items and more transparency so it can be shown where 
actual dollar amounts are requested and spent. 
 
Ms. Gardiner stated that there is no increase in this budget just that funds are being re-
directed to where they are needed and actually spent. 
 

Page 8 of 9 
 



 
Mr. Dewitt questioned the charitable contribution to the GBTA however, Mr.  Hiller 
stated this issue will be addressed at the next meeting. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey questioned the motor vehicle fuel line item for busses-Ms. Gardiner 
responded that this was based on historical usage and could not anticipate for rate 
increase. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey also questioned if the costs for repair and maintenance for the busses were 
included in this budget- Mr. Hiller responded that these costs are included in the Public 
Works budget. 
 
Mr. Stone questioned the postage line item- Mr. Tetreau stated that Mrs. Grace, Director 
of the Senior Center, has recently found a private donor whom is going to cover the cost 
of a new survey going out to our senior citizens in regards to the center’s usage and 
activities. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey requested that grants be more transparent as to where they are obtained 
and how the dollars are spent. 
 
Ms. M. Vahey also asked about the number of part time case workers- Mr. Hiller believes 
there are currently 4 part time case workers, but he will check. 
 
Mr. Kiley asked how many busses are currently in use at the senior center-Mr. Hiller said 
there are now 5 busses; a new natural gas bus was just recently obtained thru a grant. 
 
Ms. LeClerc asked about the highlights and the goals of the center and noted that repairs 
to the building are long overdue.  Ms. LeClerc also noted that costs requested for BOE 
repair and maintenance projects are so much higher than what is being requested by the 
Senior Center and that we need to see more funds going to repair this building. 
 
Ms. Cohen stated that the bathrooms at the center are those that were used by school 
children years ago and need renovations, including removing asbestos. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Ken Lee, graduate of Oldfield School-addressed the boards stating the building is in need 
of refurbishing and while the town spends so many dollars on education, very little is 
spent on our senior citizens.  Mr. Lee encourages all members of the board to walk thru 
the senior center and see for themselves how much work needs to be done and 
encourages both boards to provide funding for renovations and repairs. 
 
Motion to adjourn made by Mr. Brachfeld. Seconded by Ms. McCarthy-Vahey- meeting 
adjourned at 10:03pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted by Christine S. Boccamazzo 

Page 9 of 9 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


